TOWN OF GROTON

173 Main Street
Groton, Massachusetts 01450-1237
Tel: (978) 448-1111
Fax: (978) 448-1115

Town Manager
Mark W. Haddad

SELECT BOARD MEETING
MONDAY, DECEMBER 5, 2022
AGENDA
SELECT BOARD MEETING ROOM
2" FLOOR
GROTON TOWN HALL

7:00 P.M. Announcements and Review Agenda for the Public
7:05 P.M. Public Comment Period
I 7:06 P.M. Town Manager’s Report

Select Board

John F. Reilly, Chair
Rebeca H. Pine, Vice Chair
Matthew F. Pisani, Clerk
Alison S. Manugian, Member
Peter S. Cunningham, Member

1. Update/Discussion — Potential for Rolling Blackouts -Light Department General Manager Kevin Kelly,

Police Chief Michael Luth and Fire Chief Steele McCurdy

2. Annual License Renewals
3. Fiscal Year 2024 Budget Development Update

4. Update on Select Board Meeting Schedule through the End of the Year

Il 7:10 P.M. Items for Select Board Consideration and Action

1. Consider Appointing Charles Vander Linden to the Affordable Housing Trust

2. Review and Approve Financial Policies

OTHER BUSINESS

ON-GOING ISSUES — Review and Informational Purposes — Brief Comments - Items May or May Not Be Discussed

Water Department — Manganese Issue

PFAS Issue

Green Communities Application and Implementation
Florence Roche Elementary School Construction Project
ARPA Funding

mooE >

SELECT BOARD LIAISON REPORTS
. Minutes: Regularly Scheduled Meeting of November 21, 2022

ADJOURNMENT

Votes may be taken at any time during the meeting. The listing of topics that the Chair reasonably anticipates will be discussed at the
meeting is not intended as a guarantee of the topics that will be discussed. Not all topics listed may in fact be discussed, and other

topics not listed may also be brought up for discussion to the extent permitted by law.



TOWN OF GROTON Select Board

173 Main Street

Groton, Massachusetts 01450-1237 John F. Reilly, Chair
Tel: (978) 448-1111 Rebeca H. Pine, Vice Chair
Fax: (978) 448-1115 Matthew F. Pisani, Clerk

Alison S. Manugian, Member
Peter S. Cunningham, Member

Town Manager
Mark W. Haddad

To: Select Board

From: Mark W. Hﬁddad - Town Manager
Subject: Weekly Agenda Update/Report
Date: December 5, 2022

TOWN MANAGER’S REPORT

Other than the Town Manager’s Report, Items for Select Board Consideration and Action and a review
of the On-going Issues List, there are no specific scheduled Agenda Items on Monday’s Agenda.

1. Recently, Electric Light Department General Manager Kevin Kelly sent out a letter to all of their
customers informing them that there may be rolling blackouts this winter. Select Board Chair
Reilly has requested that Kevin Kelly, along with Police Chief Michael Luth and Fire Chief Steele
McCurdy, come in before the Select Board to discuss this issue in more detail to communicate
what actions the Town is taking to address this issue. The Chair, as well as other members,
have been receiving inquiries from residents as to what steps the Town has taken in the event
this happens this Winter.

2, Enclosed with this report are the proposed license renewals for Calendar Year 2023. | would
respectfully request that the Board consider approving these licenses at the meeting.

- With regard to the FY 2024 Budget Development, we have completed our review meetings with
the various Departments on their Budget Requests. As always, our Department Heads were
very prepared and did a great job presenting their budgets to the Finance Team. Some
members of the Select Board and Finance Committee attended the meetings, which | found
very helpful. The Finance Team and | are in the process of developing the final recommended
budget. | hope to have a placeholder number from the Groton Dunstable Regional School
District sometime this week to help me finalize the budget.



Select Board

Weekly Agenda Update/Report
December 5, 2022

page two

4. Please see the update to the meeting schedule that will take the Board through the end of the

year:

Monday, December 12, 2022 -Sustainability Commission Report
-Destination Groton Committee Update

Monday, December 19, 2022 -Finance Team Update on New Growth, etc.

Monday, December 26, 2022 No Meeting (Christmas Holiday)

Monday, January 2, 2023 No Meeting (New Year Holiday)

Monday, January 9, 2023 -FY 2024 Town Manager’s Budget Presentation

ITEMS FOR SELECT BOARD CONSIDERATION AND ACTION

1. The Affordable Housing Trust has requested that the Select Board appoint Charles Vander
Linden to the Trust. The term would expire on June 30, 2023. | would respectfully request that
the Board consider making this appointment at Monday’s meeting.

2, Section 6.3 of the Groton Charter states that “annually the Select Board and the Finance
Committee shall review and update the town’s overall financial management policies. ” The
current policies are attached to this Report for your review. The Finance Committee has
conducted their review and are not proposing any changes. | agree with the Finance
Committee that no changes are required. | would respectfully request that the Select Board
consider approving these policies at Monday's meeting.

MWH/rijb
enclosures



TOWN OF GROTON

173 Main Street
Groton, Massachusetts 01450-1237
Tel: (978) 448-1111
Fax: (978) 448-1115

Town Manager
Mark W. Haddad

TO:

FROM:
DATE:

RE:

Mark Haddad, Town Manager
Kara Cruikshank, Executive Asst.

December 1, 2022
Masa, Inc., dba Ixtapa Grill & Cantina — Application for Amendment

Masa, Inc., dba Extapa Grill & Cantina, Eric Brambila, Manager
Located at 765 Boston Road

Change of Business Entity and Hours of Operation

Last-Approved DBA: Ixtapa Mexican Restaurant and Grill
Requested New DBA: Tequila’s Mexican Cantina

Hours of Operation: Saturday and Sunday 11:00am- 10:00pm

Select Board

John F. Reilly, Chair
Rebecca H. Pine, Vice Chair
Matthew F. Pisani, Clerk
Alison S. Manugian, Member
Peter S. Cunningham, Member



TOWN OF GROTON SELECT BOARD

173 Main Street
Groton, Massachusetts 01450-1237
Tel: (978) 448-1111
Fax: (978) 448-1115

John F. Reilly, Chair
Rebecca H. Pine, Vice Chair
Matthew F. Pisani, Clerk
Alison S. Manugian, Member
Peter S. Cunningham, Member

Town Manager
Mark W. Haddad

TO: Mark Haddad, Town Manager FROM:
Kara Cruikshank, Executive Assistant
DATE: December 1, 2022
RE: 2023 License Renewals — Alcohol, Common Victualler (CVL) & Class Il

The following licenses require Select Board approval for renewal for calendar year 2023:

e Omahi Realty, LLC, dba Boston Road Market, Piyush Patel, Manager
Located at 871 Boston Road
All Alcohol Package Store & CVL
Hours of Operation: Mon-Sat 8:00 AM — 11:00 PM; Sun 10:00 AM — 11:00 PM
Licenses to expire on December 31, 2023

e Groton Market, Inc., John Madigan, Manager
Located at 235 Main Street
All Alcohol Package Store
Hours of Operation: Mon-Sat 9:00 AM - 9:00 PM, Sun 11:00 AM - 6:00 PM
License to expire on December 31, 2023

e Marchand, Denis H. & Estelle C., dba Craven’s Package Store, Denis H. Marchand, Manager
Located at 777 Boston Road
All Alcohol Package Store
Hours of Operation: Mon-Sat 8:00 AM - 11:00 PM, Sun 10:00 AM - 11:00 PM
License to expire on December 31, 2023

o Filho’s Cucina, Inc., dba Filho’s Cucina, Oswaldo Filho, Manager
Located at 235 Main Street
CVL & Carry-In
Hours of Operation: Mon-Thurs 11:00 AM = 8:00 PM, Fri & Sat 11:00 AM = 9:00 PM,
Sun 12:00 PM - 8:00 PM
Licenses to expire on December 31, 2023

e Main House, Inc., Chang Wen Huang, Manager
Located at 495 Main Street, Unit 3C
CvL
Hours of Operation: Mon-Sun 11:00 AM - 10:00 PM
License to expire on December 31, 2023

e FJ Catalano Enterprises, Inc., dba Dunkin Donuts-Groton Center, Steve Catalano, Owner
Located at 133 Main Street
CVL
Hours of Operation: Mon-Sun 5:00 AM = 7:00 PM
License to expire on December 31, 2023



Courtney’s Donuts, LLC, dba Dunkin Donuts-Groton Forge, Steve Catalano, Owner
Located at 788 Boston Road

CVL

Hours of Operation: Mon-Sun 6:00 AM —7:00 PM

License to expire on December 31, 2023

Courtney’s Donuts, LLC, dba Dunkin Donuts-Groton Haffners, Steve Catalano, Owner
Located at 318 Main Street

CVL

Hours of Operation: Mon-Sun 6:00 AM —7:00 PM

License to expire on December 31, 2023

Energy North Incorporated., dba: Haffner’s 3120, Ruth Fichter, Manager
Located at 318 Main Street

CVL

Hours of Operation: Sun-Sat 6:00 AM —10:00 PM

License to expire on December 31, 2023

Gibbet Hill Grill LLC, dba Gibbet Hill Grill Restaurant and The Barn at Gibbet Hill Function Hall,
Martha Lisio, Manager

Located at 61 Lowell Road

All Alcohol Restaurant (2) & CVL (2)

Hours of Operation (Barn & Grill): Mon-Sun 11:00 AM = 1:00 AM

License to expire on December 31, 2023

Groton Medical Wellness Spa, LLC, dba Evans Energy Wellness Café, Jean Nordin Evans, Manager
Located at 493 Main Street

CVL

Hours of Operation: Mon-Fri 8:00 AM - 5:00 PM

License to expire on December 31, 2023

Seven Hills Pediatric Center, Holly Jarek, Manager
Located at 22 Hillside Ave

CVL

Hours of Operation: 24/7

Licenses to expire on December 31, 2023

Masa, Inc., dba Ixtapa Grill & Cantina, Eric Brambila, Manager
Located at 765 Boston Road

All Alcohol Restaurant & CVL

Hours of Operation: Sun to Saturday 11:00 AM - 11:00 PM
Licenses to expire on December 31, 2023

Shaw’s Supermarkets, Inc., dba Shaw’s Supermarket #627, Mike Ricciardi, Manager
Located at 760A Boston Road

CVL

Hours of Operation: Mon to Sat 7:00 AM - 10:00 PM, Sun 7:00 AM - 9:00 PM

License to expire on December 31, 2023

Blackbird Café, Inc., dba Blackbird Café, Ally Watkins, Manager
Located at 493 Main Street

Unit G

CVL

Hours of Operation Wed -Mon: 7:00 AM — 2:30 PM

License to expire on December 31, 2023



Country Butcher & Deli, Inc., Patrick Gaudet, Manager

Located at 68 Boston Road

CVL

Hours of Operation: Tues-Fri 9:00 AM-5:00 PM, Sat 9:00 AM-3:00 PM,
Sunday/Monday-Closed

License to expire on December 31, 2023

RiverCourt Residences, Kristen Cossette, Manager
Located at 8 West Main Street

CVL

Hours of Operation: 24/7

License to expire on December 31, 2023

The Natural Market, Inc., dba The Natural Market, Joan Reardon, Manager
Located at 148 Main Street

CVL -

Hours of Operation: Mon to Sat 9:30 AM to 6:30 PM

License to expire on December 31, 2023

128 Main Street, LLC; dba: The Groton Inn & Forge & Vine; Patricia Anne Tompkins, Manager
Located at 128 Main Street

All Alcohol Restaurant (2), CVL (2), Entertainment (2) and Sunday Entertainment (2)

Hours of Operation: Mon-Sat 8:00 AM — 1:00 AM, Sun 10:00 AM - 1:00 AM (Groton Inn & Forge & Vine)
License to expire on December 31, 2023

Station House Restaurant, LLC, dba: The Station House, Andrew L. McElroy, Manager
Located at 20 Station Ave

All Alcohol Restaurant & CVL

Hours of Operation: Mon-Sun 8:00 AM —12:00 AM

License to expire on December 31, 2023

Gilson Family Herb Enterprises, dba The Herb Lyceum, William Gilson, Manager
Located at 368 Main Street

All Alcohol Restaurant, CVL & Entertainment

Hours of Operation: Mon-Sun 11:00 AM = 11:00 PM

Licenses to expire on December 31, 2023

Bruno Ferreira, dba Bruno’s Pizzeria, Bruno Ferreira, Manager
Located at 195 Main Street

CVL

Hours of Operation: Mon-Sun 9:30 AM —8:30 PM

License to expire on December 31, 2023

Contingent on receipt of renewal paperwork

Santi’s Restaurant & Dairy Bar, dba Johnson’s Restaurant & Dairy Bar, Richard Santiano, Manager
Located at 164 Boston Road

CVL & Carry-In

Hours of Operation:

Surmmer Hours: Mon-Sun 6:00 AM — 9:00 PM

Winter Hours; Mon-Sun 6:00 AM — 3:00 PM

Licenses to expire on December 31, 2023



¢ Dolce Amar Sweets to Love, Raffaella Gutterman, Manager
Located at 497 Main Street, Suite A
CVL
Hours of Operation: Mon-Sun 7:00 AM - 5:00 PM
License to expire on December 31, 2023

e Salt & Light, Café, Josiah & Linda Coleman, Manager
Located at 1569 Main Street
CVL
Hours of Operation: Tues - Sat 6:00 AM to 2:00 PM
License to expire on December 31, 2023

o NESSP Sai Canteen, Neelkanth Mishra, Manager
Located at 99 Shirdi Way
CVL
Hours of Operation: Weekdays 6:00 PM — 9:00 PM; Sat-Sun 10:00 AM - 7:00 PM
License to expire on December 31, 2023

e GPH Pub, LLC, dba: The Groton Publick House Pub and Eatery, Christopher Frothingham, Manager
Located at 94 Lovers Lane
All Alcohol Restaurant (2) and CVL (2)
Hours of Operation: Daily 10:00 AM — 1:00 AM (Restaurant & Function Hall)
License to expire on December 31, 2023

¢ Hollis Street Nutrition, Julie Flynn, Manager
Located at 30 Hollis Street
CVL
Hours of Operation: Mon - Fri 7:00 AM = 4:00 PM; Sat 8:00 AM = 3:00 PM; Sun 10:00 AM = 2:00 PM
License to expire on December 31, 2023
Contingent on receipt of renewal

e Groton Towing, Inc., Robert Olson, Manager
Located at 465 Main Street
Class Il
Hours of Operation: Mon-Fri 8:00 AM — 6:00 PM; Sat 9:00 AM = 12:00 PM; 24/7 for towing
License to expire on December 31, 2023

e A.L.Prime Energy, Mark Shiekhabdou, Manager
Located at 619 Boston Road
CVL _
Hours of Operation: Mon-Sat 6:00 AM — 10:00 PM; Sun 7:00 AM - 9:00 PM
License to expire on December 31, 2023

o Shree Hari Om, LLC, dba: Groton Wine & Spirits; Utsav Patel, Manager
Located at 768 Boston Road
All Alcohol Package Store
and CVL
Hours of Operation: Mon-Wed 10:00 AM — 9:00 PM;
Thurs-Sat 10:00 AM = 10:00 PM; Sun 10 AM-7 PM
License to expire on December 31, 2023



Indralok, Inc., dba: Country Farms; Romulo Roma, Manager
Located at 127 Main Street

Wine & Malt Package Store

and CVL

Hours of Operation: Mon-Sun 6:00 AM — 9:00 PM

License to expire on December 31, 2023

Groton House of Pizza, Theo Stefanakos, Manager
Located at 129 Main Street

CVL

Hours of Operation: Mon-Sat 11:00 AM - 8:00 PM
Closed Sunday

Licenses to expire on December 31, 2023

The Groton Hill Music Center, Lisa Fiorentino, Manager
Located at 122 Old Ayer Road

All Alcoholic Beverages & CVL

Hours of Operation: Sat- Sun 12:00 PM- 10:00 PM
Licenses to expire on December 31, 2023



SELECT BOARD POLICY

Policy Category: Board
Policy Number: BOA — 20198
Latest Revision Date: February 7, 2022

roLicy name:  FINANCIAL POLICIES

Introduction

The Select Board sets forth the following financial principles consistent with its responsibilities in
Groton's Home Rule Charter. These principles provide a broad framework for overall fiscal
planning and management of the Town of Groton's resources. In addition, these principles
address both current activities and long-term planning. The principles are intended to be
advisory in nature and serve as a point of reference for all policy-makers, administrators and
advisors. It is fully understood that Town Meeting retains the full right to appropriate funds and
incur debt at levels it deems appropriate, subject, of course, to statutory limits such as
Proposition 2 1/2.

The principles outlined in this policy are designed to ensure the Town's sound financial
condition, and seek to be in the best economic interest of the Town now and in the future.
Sound Financial Condition may be defined as:

. Cash Solvency - the ability to pay bills in a timely fashion.

. Budgetary Solvency - the ability to balance the budget annually.

. Long-Term Solvency - the ability to pay future costs.

. Service Level Solvency - the ability to provide needed and desired services.

. Public Confidence - the ability to garner public support for decisions that promote

financial stability.

It is equally important that the Town maintain flexibility in its finances to ensure that the Town is
in a position to react and respond to changes in the economy and new service challenges
without measurable financial stress.

Page 1 of 23




SELECT BOARD POLICY

General Financial Guidelines

1. Financial discussions shall be open and inclusive. The Town is committed to regular
financial forecasting, independent audit, and periodic public review of financial details and
ratification of decisions by Town Meeting.

2. The Town will avoid budgetary procedures that balance current obligations at the
expense of meeting future years’ needs, such as postponing expenditures or accruing future
years' revenues. Long and short-ferm debt will be scheduled with careful attention to the
Town’s capital needs plan and managed in such a way as to avoid excessive issuance costs.

3. Ongoing operating costs will be funded by ongoing operating revenue sources. This
protects the Town from fluctuating service levels and avoids concern when one-time revenues
are reduced or removed. The Town Manager and the Department of Finance shall collaborate
with the Finance Committee to prepare, maintain and present to the Select Board and Town
Meeting a five-year financial plan for the Town.

4. The Town will maintain a Stabilization Fund as one of its two primary financial reserves.
It shall be the goal of the Town to achieve and maintain a balance of at least 5% of the Town's
current line item budget.

5. The Town will maintain a Municipal Capital Stabilization Fund to defray the cost of new
equipment, building maintenance, and capital improvements to town land and buildings to the
extent that these costs may be funded by the Fund's balance. {See Debt Management Policies
for costs exceeding the Fund's balance, which may be funded by borrowing.) It shall be the
goal of the Town to maintain a balance in this fund of a minimum of 1.5% of the Town's current
line item budget, with the objective to grow the fund to support near term and cover longer term
needs.

6. The Town will continue to maintain a Conservation Fund to be used in part for the
purchase of land, or conservation restrictions or agricultural preservation restrictions on lands
that exhibit high value for protection because they contain imporiant natural resources. The
Conservation Commission is responsible for formulating and prioritizing a list of such parcels so
that a plan may be established for future purchases. It shall be the goal to maintain a balance in
the Conservation Fund of at least 2% of the Town’s current line item budget, exclusive of
Enterprises and the Community Preservation Fund; and to the extent possible, deposits to the
Conservation Fund should come from the Community Preservation Surtax.

Page 2 of 23



SELECT BOARD POLICY

7. The Town shall maintain a Community Preservation Fund in accordance with the current
law. The fund will be managed in a manner that will guarantee payment of current debt service
prior to approving new capital costs. Borrowing shall be managed in order to assure that no
more than a total 75% of CPA receipts, not including annual contributions to the fund by the
Commonwealth, are dedicated to debt service in compliance with Massachusetts Department of
Revenue IGR 00-209 and File #2004-464.

8. The Town shall monitor its Special Revenue Funds (Gifts, Grants, and Trusts) and its
Enterprise Funds to assure the solvency of these funds and avoid undue stress on the general
fund. To this end, a) Enterprise policies shall require that rates be set to ensure revenues are
sufficient to fund all operating costs and debt service and fund retained earnings, unless there is
an explicit policy implemented by the Town to provide General Fund support to the Enterprise.
In addition, b) Enterprise policies shall include a goal for the targeted amount of retained
earnings. The goal shall include amounts considered appropriate to fund unexpected
occurrences and emergencies and expenditures necessary to meet change in law
requirements, to fund capital and operating reserves, and to serve as a rafe stabilization
reserve. The policies shall also include a goal for debt limitations consistent with the Town's
general goals. In addition, ¢) the Town shall not enter into contracts for reimbursable and/or
matching grant liabilities whose aggregate total exceeds 1.5% of the Town’s current line item
budget, unless the Town Manager receives prior approval from the Select Board and Finance
Committee.

9. The Select Board and the Finance Committee shall review the financial policies
annually, seeking input from financial staff and advisors. This review should take place by
QOctober 1st of each year.

10. investment practices will be in accordance with the Town's "Investment Policy".

Page 3 of 23




SELECT BOARD POLICY

TOWN OF GROTON
FREE CASH POLICY

l. PURPOSE AND SCOPE

The Town’s Excess and Deficiency (E&D) Fund “Free Cash” is the result of the calculation, as
of July 1, of Groton’s remaining, unrestricted funds from its operations of the previous fiscal year
based on the balance sheet as of June 30. It typically includes receipts in excess of revenue
estimates and unspent amounts in departmental budget line items for the year just ended, plus
unexpended free cash from previous years. Free Cash plays an important role in allowing
Groton to sustain a strong credit rating. The purpose of this policy is to provide guidance on the
use of Free Cash to fund certain expenditures

il. POLICY

1. As a nonrecurring revenue source, spending from the E&D account is allowed for any
lawful municipal purpose, however, it should be restricted to paying one-time expenditures,
funding capital projects, or replenishing other reserves.

2. The Town should strive to maintain an E&D account balance in an amount equal to one
(1%) percent of its current Town’s current line item budget. This amount is in addition fo the
policy of having the Stabilization Fund equal five (5%) percent of the Town’s current line item
budget.

3. The Town should strive to maintain a Municipal Capital Stabilization Fund (excluding the
Town created GDRSD Capital Stabilization Fund) balance at 1.5% of the Town’s current line
item budget with the goal to grow the fund to support near term and cover longer term needs.

4. The E&D account balance shall be maintained through the use of fiscally responsible
revenue projections and departmental spending.

5. The E&D account balance can be expended at the discretion of Town Meeting for the
following purposes:

a. To Replenish the Stabilization Fund, replenish and grow the Capital Stabilization Fund
and fund the Town created Groton-Dunstable Regional School District's Capital Stabilization
Fund.

b. To pay employee incentives (i.e. health savings accounts, health reimbursement
accounts, merit increases) contingent on the availability of a sufficient E&D account balance.

Page 4 of 23




SELECT BOARD POLICY

c. To fund an annual contribution to the Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB)
liability trust fund.
d. To fund one-time projects proposed by the Select Board and Finance Committee.

e. Offset the Tax Rate.

Page 5 of 23




SELECT BOARD POLICY

TOWN OF GROTON DEBT
MANAGEMENT POLICY

Introduction

The use of long-term debt is a common and often necessary way for a community to address
major infrastructure and equipment needs. It is also a means of spreading the cost of large
capital projects over a larger, changing population base. However, when a local government
incurs long-term debt, it establishes a fixed obligation for many years. Accumulation of such
fixed burdens can become so great that a local government finds it difficult to pay both its
operational costs and debt service charges. Great care and planning must therefore be taken
when incurring long-term debt to avoid placing a strain on future revenues. The purpose of this
policy is to establish guidelines governing the use of long-term debt. Massachusetts General
Laws, Chapter 44, Sections 7 & 8 regulate the purposes for which municipalities may incur debt
and the maximum maturity for bonds issued for each purpose. Massachusetts General Laws,
Chapter 44, Section | 0, specifies that the debt limit for towns is 5% of Equalized Valuation.

Capital Funding Guidelines

The Town's long-term debt strategies will be structured to reflect its capital needs and ability to
pay. The Capital Stabilization Fund (see "Overall Financial Policies", #5) will be used in
conjunction with regular financial forecasting to maintain overall borrowing costs at a reasonable
level (see Debt Limitations below). The Town will not, in general, bond projects or aggregate
funding of multiple projects/purchases that fall within the funding ability of the Capital
Stabilization Fund. Except for emergency needs, the Town will plan its funding for major capital
purchases or improvements by utilizing both the timing of debt acquisition and the length of term
for debt repayment in a manner which allows the Town to remain within the guidelines for
annual debt service (see Debt Limitations below).

Bond Rating

The community's bond rating is important because it determines the rate of interest it pays when
selling bonds and notes. Other things being equal, the higher the bond rating, the lower the
interest rate. Bond analysts (Moody's, Standard & Poor's, Fitch) typically look at four sets of
factors in assigning a credit rating:

. Debt Factors: debt per capita, debt as a percentage of equalized valuation and rate debt
amortization.

. Financial Factors: operating surpluses or deficits, free cash as a percent of revenue,
state aid reliance, property tax collection rates, and unfunded pension liability.

. Economic Factors: property values, personal income levels, tax base growth, tax and
economic base diversity, unemployment rates and population growth.

Page 6 of 23




SELECT BOARD POLICY

. Management Factors: governmental structure, the existence of a capital improvement
plan, the quality of accounting and financial reporting, ete.

The Town will continually strive to improve its bond rating through sound financial management,
improved receivables management, accounting and financial reporting and increased reserves,
such as the Stabilization Fund.

Debt Limitations

General Fund Debt Service: A limit on debt service costs as a percent of the Town's total
budget is especially important because of Proposition 2% constraints on town's budget. At the
same time, the community's regular and well-structured use of long-term debt symbolizes the
municipality's commitment to maintaining and improving its infrastructure. The Town of Groton is
committed to a debt service budget equal to 5% of the Town's current line item budget,
exclusive of Enterprise funded debt, Community Preservation funded debt and debt service
excluded from Proposition 2 1/2. The Town will also, by policy, establish a debt service "floor” of
3% of the Town’s current line item budget, as an expression of support for continued investment
in the town's roads, utilities, public facilities and other capital assets. In order to maintain these
benchmarks, the Town should schedule future debt service to coincide with maturing debt
service. To maintain this floor, if debt service is projected fo fall below 3% of the Town's current
line item budget, that amount below shall be expended on one-time pay-as-you-go capital or
shall be appropriated to the Capital Stabilization Fund.

Debt Maturity Schedule: As previously stated, Chapter 44 of the General Laws specifies
the maximum maturity for bonds issued for various purposes. However, a town may choose to
borrow for periods less than the statutory limit. The Town of Groton is committed to establishing
an average debt maturity goal of 10 years. This can be accomplished through more aggressive
amortization of new debt service and shortening terms for existing debt when the option to
refinance a bond becomes available. (It should be noted that revenue supported debt service for
water and sewer projects will not be subject to this objective.)

Debt Strategies

Alternative Financing Strategies: The Town will continually pursue opportunities to acquire
capital by means other than conventional borrowing; such as grants and low- or zero-interest
loans from state agencies, such as the Mass Water Pollution Abatement trust (MWPAT) or the
MWRA.

Debt Issuance: The Town will work closely with the Town's Financial Advisor and Bond
Counsel to ensure that all legal requirements are met and that the lowest possible interest rate
can be obtained.

Page 7 of 23




SELECT BOARD POLICY

Enterprises; Any debt issued for the benefit of the Town's enterprise funds is to be paid from
service revenues, unless there is an explicit direction from Town Meeting to contribute General

Fund support of the debt service.

Capital Planning: No projects are to be funded by debt authorized by Town Meeting unless
those projects have been incorporated in to and vetted by the Town's capital planning process.

Lease-Purchase Financings - any lease purchase agreements, financings, etc., utilized by the
Town shall be considered debt for the purposes of this policy and shall be subject to all the

constraints cited herein.

Page 8 of 23




SELECT BOARD POLICY

TOWN OF GROTON
POLICY FOR THE FUNDING OF OTHER OBLIGATIONS

Introduction

Under Massachusetts General Laws, the Town is currently funding its unfunded pension liability
through its participation in the Middlesex County Regional Retirement System. The Town also
has the responsibility to fund its Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) liability.

The Town will utilize the following policy towards that end:
Policy Guidelines

Independent Evaluation of Liability: The Town will have its liability measured by an outside
consultant every second year; with interim evaluations done yearly for the purposes of updating
the total liability.

Limitation of Retiree Health Care Costs: The Town has adopted the requirements of Section
18A of Chapter 32B, which serves to limit liability for retiree health insurance by utitizing the
benefits of Medicare and thereby shifting some of the cost away from local funding.

OPEB Funding Plan:
PURPOSE

To provide the basis for a responsible plan for meeting the Town’s obligation to provide other
post-employment benefits (OPEB) to current and future retirees, this policy provides guidelines
designed to ensure OPEB sustainability and achieve generational equity among those called
upon to financially support OPEB, thereby avoiding transferring costs into the future. This policy
is adopted in compliance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB 74/75) and
Massachusetts General Law, Chapter 203C, §3 and Massachusetts General Law, Chapter 32B,
§20.

APPLICABILITY

This policy encompasses OPEB-related budget decisions, accounting, financial reporting, and
investment. It applies to the Select Board, Finance Committee and Town Manager in their
budget decision making responsibilities. This Policy also applies to the OPEB related duties of
the Finance Team members, including the Town Accountant, Town Treasurer-Tax Collector,
Principal Assistant Assessor, Human Resources Director and Executive Assistant to the Town
Manager.

Page 9 of 23




SELECT BOARD POLICY

BACKGROUND

In addition to salaries, the Town of Groton compensates employees in a variety of other forms.
Many earn benefits over their years of service that they will not receive until after retirement. A
pension is one such earned benefit. Anocther is a set of retirement insurance plans for health
and life. These are collectively referred to as other post-employment benefits or OPEB.

OPER represents a significant liability for the Town that must be properly measured, reported,
and planned for financially. As part of the long-range plan to fund this obligation, the Town
established an OPEB Trust Fund, which allows for long term asset investment at higher rates of
return than those realized by general operating funds. This fund is managed by the Town
Treasurer.

POLICY

The Town of Groton is committed to funding the long-term cost of the benefits promised its
employees. To do so, the Town will accumulate resources for future benefit payments in a
disciplined, methodical manner during the active service life of employees. The Town will also
periodically assess strategies to mitigate its OPEB liability. This involves evaluating the
structure of offered benefits and their cost drivers while at the same time avoiding benefit
reductions that would place undue burdens on employees or risk making the Town an
uncompetitive employer.

A. Accounting and Reporting

The Town Treasurer, responsible for oversight of the investment portfolio, has designated
Morgan Stanley as investment manager of the trust assets. The Treasurer will manage the
fund's contributions and disbursements and monitor the account and investment activity reports.
On an annual basis, the Finance Team will meet to review the Trust's investment policy to
ensure conformance with the State's prudent investor laws, and to review investment strategy,
performance and fees.

The Town Accountant will obtain actuarial analyses of the Town’s OPEB liability every two years
and will annually report the Town’s OPEB obligations in financial statements that comply with
the current guidelines of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.

The Town Manager shall ensure that the Town’s independent audit firm reviews compliance

with the accounting and reporting provisions of this policy as part of its annual audits and will
report on these to the Select Board.

Page 10 of 23




SELECT BOARD POLICY

B. Mitigation

On an ongoing basis, the Town will assess healthcare cost containment measures and evaluate
strategies to mitigate its OPEB liability. The Treasurer shall monitor proposed laws affecting
OPEB and Medicare and analyze their impacts. The Treasurer shall also regularly audit the
group insurance and retiree rolls and drop any participants found to be ineligible based on work
hours, active Medicare status, or other factors.

C. Funding

To address the OPER liability, decision makers shall analyze a variety of funding strategies and
subsequently implement them as appropriate with the intention of fully funding the obligation.
The Town shall derive funding to invest in the OPEB Trust from taxation, free cash, retained
earnings, and any other legal form. Among strategies to consider for funding the obligation:

. Determine and commit to appropriating an annual portion of Free Cash and available
Tax Capacity.

. Determine and appropriate annually the amount necessary to prevent the net present
value OPEB Liability from increasing.

. When a new position is created, determine the OPEB liability for the position and
appropriate annually the anticipated OPEB liability of the position, in addition to the annual cost
of the position.

. When the Town's Unfunded Pension Liability is fully funded in 2035, the Town will
appropriate such savings to the Town’s OPEB Trust to reduce its OPEB Liability.

Page 11 of 23




SELECT BOARD POLICY

TOWN OF GROTON
POLICY FOR THE REVIEW OF BUDGET PERFORMANCE

Infroduction

The Town Charter requires the Town Manager to present a balanced budget to the Select
Board and the Finance Committee six months prior to the beginning of each fiscal year; in effect
by January 1st. Prior to the formulation of the Budget, the Select Board, Finance Committee and
Town Manager shall meet prior to October 1st to determine budgetary goals for the ensuing
Fiscal Year. The initial budget is developed in conjunction with the Town's Department
Managers and reviewed in several public meetings as well as formal public hearings,
culminating in ratification by Town Meeting. The Town utilizes specific line items for its budget,
each line considered a separate and distinct appropriation. In order to monitor expenditures and
assure the integrity of the overall budget, regular review and management direction is required,
as outlined in the policy guidelines below.

Policy Guidelines

Line Iltem Appropriation Review: Each Department Manager or elected/appointed
Board/Commission is required to monitor expenditures, and local receipts revenue if applicable,
relevant to that governmental area's operation. The Accounting Department will provide budget
variance reports at least monthly as a management tool to aid periodic monitoring.

Total Budget Review: The Town Manager will review the monthly variance reports for all
departments/cost centers; and the Town Accountant will provide ongoing oversight. There will
be periodic presentation of the budget status to the Select Board and Finance Committee; this
presentation to occur at least quarterly.

Reserve Fund: The Town will include a budgetary reserve fund equal to approximately [% of the
total general fund appropriations less the assessments to the district schools which will be under
the management of the Finance Committee to account for extraordinary or unforeseen
expenses.

Line ltem Transfer: The budget will be reviewed twice each year by the Town Manager in
conjunction with the Town Accountant and the Finance Committee for opportunities to re-
balance the original budget. Such reviews will take place prior to the fall and spring annual town
meetings and any transfers will be publicly debated and subsequently ratified by Town Meeting.

Page 12 of 23




SELECT BOARD POLICY

TOWN OF GROTON
POST ISSUANCE COMPLIANCE POLICY

OBJECTIVE OF THE POLICY

The objective of this policy is to ensure compliance with federal tax law and regulations
pertaining to the use of tax-exempt governmental purpose bonds and to the use of property,
projects and equipment funded with tax-exempt governmental purpose bonds.

This document is to encompass the following:

. The use of bond proceeds (and the term "bond", except as otherwise indicated, includes
notes, bonds and tax-exempt lease purchases issued by the Town);

. The use of property, projects, equipment, etc. funded with tax-exempt bond proceeds;
. The timely expenditure of bond proceeds;
. Compliance with arbitrage yield restriction rules and with the calculation and timely

payment of arbitrage rebate payments, as required;

. Filing requirements;

. The reserve of funds in anticipation of a rebate payment requirement;
. Collection and retention of necessary documentation; and

. Resolution of problems.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE PARTIES INVOLVED

The Town Treasurer shall be responsible for implementing this policy. The Treasurer will be
assisted by:

. The Town Accountant, who is responsible for recording expenditures and interest
earnings and for reviewing and approving contracts entered into by the Town;

. The Town Manager, who is the Chief Procurement Officer, or a designated subordinate

has ultimate responsibility for the implementation of Town capital projects and disposition of
Town property; and

Page 13 of 23




SELECT BOARD POLICY

. The Chief Procurement Officer, if other than the Town Manager, who has the
responsibility for procuring service and management contracts and overseeing the acquisition
and disposition of Town property.

It is the Treasurer's responsibility to convey to each party the Treasurer's expectations as to
their performance relating to project implementation, project expenditures, documentation, and
information required by the Treasurer to remain in compliance with applicable tax law, Since all
the responsible parties participate in the issuance of Town bonds, the Treasurer will provide
direction to those responsible parties during the process of issuing bonds, at the time of the
delivery of bond proceeds, and after the delivery of bond proceeds but prior to the final maturity
of the bonds,

SCOPE OF THE POLICY AND PROCEDURES

The following sections outline the scope of the policy and procedures for which the Treasurer is
responsible:

Use of bond proceeds and bond funded property -

It is the Treasurer's responsibility to monitor and ensure the proper use of bond proceeds and
bond funded property.

The proper use of tax-exempt bond proceeds and the proper use of bond-funded property,
projects, equipment, etc., (hereafter "property”), will be confirmed and documented through
Bond Counsel's review prior to the issuance of tax-exempt bonds and will be addressed in the
legal opinion issued by Bond Counsel and in the Tax Certificate (or Non-Arbitrage Certificate)
prepared by Bond Counsel as part of the final bond transcript.

There are further requirements associated with the proper use of bond financed projects and of
the use of bond proceeds included in the Massachusetts General Laws and in the regulations
imposed by the Department of Revenue regulations. Although these requirements are not part
of federal tax law, the requirements do dictate how bond funded property is to be disposed of or
how it might be used in a manner other than originally contemplated.

The continued proper use of property funded with tax-exempt bond proceeds will be monitored
by the Treasurer through an annual reminder of such to appropriate Town officials and through
the review of any Town proposals considering the change in use of the property or Town
procurements relating to such property. The procurement of service contracts, management
contracts and leases for the limited use of Town property should also be reviewed by the
Treasurer. The Treasurer will be responsible for managing any remedial actions, if required,

Page 14 of 23




SELECT BOARD POLICY

Timely expenditure of bond proceeds -

The Federal Tax Code sets explicit expectations relating to the expenditure of bond proceeds.
There are certain "safe harbors” for small issuers. If expenditure expectations for small issuers
are not met, the unexpended bond proceeds must be yield restricted. There are also
expenditure thresholds to be satisfied for bonds issued where the Town cannot use the "small
issuer" exemption. If these thresholds are not met, the Town may be required to rebate its
positive arbitrage earnings to the Federal Treasury.

It is the responsibility of the Treasurer to review the expenditure requirements cited in the Tax
Certificate and to monitor the expenditure of bond proceeds until all funds are expended.

Arbitrage yield restriction and rebate -

It is the responsibility of the Treasurer to manage yield restricted investments. It is the
responsibility of the Treasurer to determine rebate exposure; to procure arbitrage calculation
services: to make rebate payments, as required, to the Federal Treasury; and to prepare 8038-T
forms for such purposes. It is also the responsibility of the Treasurer to reserve funds for such
rebate payments, as appropriate, and to report the rebate liability to the Town's Independent
Financial Auditor.

Filing requirements -

The proper filings of forms 8038-G and 8038-GC are essential with every tax-exempt financing.
All 8038-G's and 8038-GC's are to be signed by the Town Treasurer. No other official in the
Town is authorized to execute these forms.

It is the responsibility of the Treasurer to ensure rebate payments, if required, are made on a
timely basis. Such payments must be made within 60 days of the maturity of a note; within 60
days of the fifth anniversary, and multiples thereof, of the issue of a bond:; and within 60 days of
the final maturity of a bond. The payment of a rebate is to be accompanied by and documented
on the form 8038-T.

Documentation -
It is the responsibility of the Treasurer to ensure all proper documentation is produced and
retained as required. Such documentation will include, but not necessarily be limited to, the

foliowing:

. Tax Certificates or Non-Arbitrage Certificates.

Page 15 of 23




SELECT BOARD POLICY

. Note and Bond transcripts.

. Form 8038-G's and 8038-GC's.

. Projected expenditure cash flows prepared for each financing prior to issue.

. The record of the expenditure of funds.

. The record of the investment earnings on unexpended bond proceeds prior to full

expenditure.

. Yield restricted investments, as required.

. Rebate calculations, rebate payments, and Form 8038-T, as required.
. The list of projected tax-exempt financings during each calendar-year.
. Management contracts.

If a problem occurs -

It is the responsibility of the Treasurer to address violations associated with any tax-exempt
financing when violations are discovered. The violation may be addressed through the Voluntary
Compliance Agreement Program (VCAP). Alternatively, remedial action may be required under
Section 1.141-12 of the Internal Revenue Service regulations. The Treasurer shall consult with
the Town's Bond Counsel and/or Financial Advisor as appropriate.

PROCEDURES TO BE FOLLOWED BY THE TREASURER

The following procedures are to be followed by the Treasurer. Procedures to ensure proper use
of tax-exempt funds:

In the process of preparing for a bond or note sale, the Treasurer will provide information to
Bond Counsel pertaining to the proper use of the property being acquired with tax-exempt
funds. Prior to the distribution of the Preliminary Official Statement, the Treasurer shall meet
with appropriate Town officials, including at minimum the Town Manager and the Select Board,
to review the information provided to Bond Counsel, to review the intended use of the bond
proceeds and the property funded and to determine whether there are any contemplated uses
of the property that might be inconsistent with the use of tax-exempt funds. The Treasurer shall
document this meeting in a memorandum to file.

Page 16 of 23




SELECT BOARD POLICY

Procedures to ensure compliance with the use and expenditure of note and bond proceeds at
the time of sale:

Af the time of the sale of notes and bonds, it is assumed that the projected use of proceeds and
the use of the property being funded are in compliance with the Federal tax code. 1t is
reasonable to rely on the scrutiny of Bond Counsel and the documentation that accompanies
each financing, based on the information provided to Bond Counsel.

With the completion of a financing, the Treasurer is to compile and maintain a separate file
associated with the financing. This documentation will typically include the following:

. The bids results, the final numbers, and the quantitative rationale for the use of credit
enhancement.
. The transcript for the financing, which, at minimum, should include the tax certificate

(non-arbitrage certificate). The tax certificate should include a description of use of funds, the
identification of the expenditure test to which the bonds are subject, and the arbitrage yield.

. The form 8038-G or 8038-GC.

. The projected expenditure cash flow by purpose, as provided to Bond Counsel prior to
the issuance of the bonds. The cash flow is to be for each purpose, projecting the expenditure
of funds on at least a semi-annual basis, until all funds are expended. If the bonds are subject
to certain expenditure thresholds, the cash flow should present the amount of proceeds that
should be expended at each threshold. The cash flow should be adjusted to reflect an issue
amount that might be in excess of the amount originally included in the cash flow (for example,
a large original issue premium).

. Any other notes prepared by the Treasurer, as applicable, relating to the monitoring of
the expenditure of funds and use of the property.

The Treasurer shall establish one or more bank accounts for the purposes funded to allow for
the tracking of the expenditure of fund so it is necessary that the account documentation be able
to show every payment made by amount and date and every credit of interest earnings by
amount and date. If all the purposes are co-mingled in one account, there should be a separate
recording of expenditures and investment earnings by purpose by the Town Accountant.

As required under the Massachusetts General Laws, all interest earnings shall be credited and
released to the General Fund when earned.

All such account documentation should be maintained for six years after final maturity of bonds.

Page 17 of 23




SELECT BOARD POLICY

Procedures to monitor the rate of expenditure of bonds -
To monitor the expenditure of bond proceeds, the Treasurer shall perform the following review:

. At the end of each fiscal year, and within thirty days of the final maturity of any note or
bond, the Treasurer shall review the expenditure account and check for compliance with the
required expenditure thresholds.

. The Treasurer shall assess the likelihood of continued compliance with the expenditure
thresholds, or if a threshold has not been met, assess the likelihood of positive arbitrage.

. If the Treasurer believes the expenditure thresholds have not been met and/or will not be
met, and also expects there will be investment earnings in excess of the arbitrage yieid, then the
Treasurer is to reserve an amount estimated to represent a future rebate payment or, as
applicable, to request an appropriation of Town Meeting for the rebate payment.

. The Treasurer is to continue to monitor expenditures at the end of each fiscal year, or at
the maturity of an issue, until all funds are expended.

. If after the maturity of a note or bond, the Treasurer determines that a rebate is likely
payable to the Federal Treasury, the Treasurer shall procure the services of a firm to calculate
the rebate and thereafter make payment in a timely fashion.

Thus, in addition to the documentation compiled at the closing of the bond, the Treasurer shall
add the following additional documentation:

. The record documenting expenditures until the next time a review is performed.
. As applicable, any rebate calculations performed.
. As applicable, any Forms 8038-T prepared.

When all the funds are expended, the Treasurer shall accumulate all appropriate documentation
and retain it until six years after the final maturity of the financings that funded the property.

Procedures associated with the investment of bond proceeds -
Unless funds are subject to yield restriction, the Treasurer shall be responsible for the
investment of bond proceeds as deemed appropriate. If investment contracts are purchased at

the time of the delivery of bond proceeds, such contracts shall be procured under the scrutiny of
Bond Counsel.

Page 18 of 23




SELECT BOARD POLICY

Procedures associated with procurement of investments associated with a bond issue -

It is the responsibility of the Treasurer to ensure other investments made relating to a bond
issue (such as investments purchased to fund an escrow for a current or advance refunding) are
procured in accordance with applicable tax regulations.

Procedures to ensure compliance with the use of service contracts and management contracts -

The Chief Procurement Officer shall forward all Requests for Proposals for service and/or
management contracts for review by the Treasurer. The Treasurer shall provide appropriate
direction to the Chief Procurement Officer relating to private activity issues associated with
service and management contracts. As required, the Treasurer shall request advice from the
Town's Bond Counsel and/or Financial Advisor.

Procedures to ensure compliance with lease purchases -

At the beginning of each fiscal year, the Treasurer shall inform all Town Department Heads and
other Town officials that no lease purchase contracts are to be entered into without the approval
of the Treasurer. In addition, the Treasurer shall inform them that the forms 8038-G and 8038-
GC are only to be signed by the Treasurer.

Procedures to ensure compliance with the change of use of tax-exempt bond funded property -

At the beginning of each fiscal year, the Treasurer shall present a memorandum to the Town
Manager, to the Town Accountant, and fo Town Department Heads reviewing the expected
proper use of bond funded property and requesting any information as to the possible change in
use or disposition of property. At any time during the fiscal year, if there is a change in use or
disposition of property contemplated, the Town Manager shall inform the Treasurer of the
proposal. As needed, the Treasurer shall consult with Bond Counsel and/or the Town's
financial advisor relating to such proposal.

in the case where change in use is subject to Town Meeting approval, the Town Manager shall
forward all Town Meeting articles relating to the change in use or sale of Town tax-exempt bond
funded property for review by the Treasurer. The Treasurer shall provide appropriate direction
to the Chief Procurement Officer relating to issues associated with the change in use of tax-
exempt bond funded property. As required, the Treasurer shall request advice from the Town's
Bond Counsel and/or Financial Advisor.

Page 19 of 23




SELECT BOARD POLICY

Procedures to project calendar year schedule of note and bond issues -

At the beginning of each calendar year, the Treasurer shall prepare and/or update a list of all
projected tax-exempt financings issued and expected to be issued during the then current
calendar year. This record shall document representations made by the Town relating to the
small issuer safe harbor status andfor the Bank Qualification of tax-exempt issues of the Town.
At the beginning of the following fiscal year, the Treasurer shall review the list of financings and
shall revise it accordingly.

Documentation attached hereto -

The following documentation is attached to assist in the direction, training, etc., of those parties
identified with responsibilities:

. IRS Publication 4078, Tax-exempt Private Activity Bonds

. IRS Publication 4079, Tax-exempt Governmental Bonds

Page 20 of 23




SELECT BOARD POLICY

Town of Groton
Investment Policy

Introducticn

Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 44, Section 55B requires the municipal treasurer to
invest all public funds except those required to be kept uninvested for the purpose of immediate
distribution. These guidelines are intended to further the objective of securing the highest return
that is consistent with safety of principal while meeting the daily cash requirements for the
operation of Town's business, according to the foliowing objectives:

Safety of principal is the foremost objective of the investment program. investments will be
undertaken in a manner that seeks to ensure the preservation of capital through the mitigation
of credit risk and interest rate risk. These risks shall be lessened by diversification and prudent
selection of investment of the security issuer or backer. Interest rate risk is the risk that the
market value of the security will fall due to changes in general interest rates. Liquidity is the
next most important objective. The overall investment portfolio shall remain sufficiently liquid to
meet all operating requirements that may be reasonably anticipated. Since all possible cash
demands cannot be anticipated, the treasurer shall carry out investment activities in a manner
that provides for meeting unusual cash demands without the liquidation of investments that
could result in forfeiture of accrued interest earnings, and loss of principal in some cases. Yield
is the third, and last, objective. Investments shall be made so as to achieve the best rate of
return, taking into account safety and liquidity constraints, as well as all legal requirements.

Investment Instruments

The Treasurer shall negotiate for the highest rates possible, consistent with safety principles,
avoiding uncollateralized investment products. Unsecured bank deposits of any kind will be
limited to no more than 1% of an institution's assets and no more than 10% of the Town's cash.

Diversification

Diversification should be interpreted in two ways: In terms of maturity, as well as instrument type
and issuer. The diversification concept should include prohibition against over concentration of
maturities, as well as concentration in a specific institution. With the exception of U.S.
Treasuries or agencies, no more than 10% of the Town's investments should be invested in a
single financial institution, except with the prior approval of the Town Manager and Select
Board.

Authorization

Page 21 of 23




SELECT BOARD POLICY

The Treasurer has authority to invest the Town's funds, subject to the statutes of the
Commonwealth cited above.

Ethics

The Town Treasurer (and Assistant Treasurer) shall refrain from any personal activity that may
conflict with the proper execution of the investment program or which could impair ability to
make impartial investment decisions. Said individuals shall disclose to the Town Manager, and
file in writing with the Town Clerk, any material financial interest in financial institutions that do
business with the Town. They shall also disclose any large personal financial investment
positions or loans that could be related to the performance of the Town's investments.

Relationship with Financial Institutions

Financial institutions should be selected first and foremost with regard to safety. The Town
should subscribe to and use one or more of the recognized bank rating services, such as
Veribane or Sheshunoff. Brokers should be recognized, reputable dealers. The Town shall
require any brokerage houses and broker/dealers, wishing to do business with the municipality,
to supply information and references sufficient to assure entering into a banking relationship.

The Investment of Trust Funds, Bond Proceeds, Stabilization Funds and OPEB Trust Funds

Scope

This section of the policy applies only to funds that could be invested long-term (i.e. bond
proceeds, trust funds and stabilization funds and OPEB trust funds).

Investment Policy Statements (IPS)

The Town of Groton must maintain separate Investment Policy Statements for General Fund &
Long-Term Funds, Trust Funds and OPEB Trust Funds, the primary purpose of which is to
provide a clear understanding regarding the Town’s objectives, goals, risk tolerance and
investment guidelines for the investment of each category of funds. Each IPS should be
reviewed annually by the Town Treasurer in consultation with the Town’s respective portfolio
managers, and any revisions, if deemed appropriate, should be updated accordingly.

Attached: Town of Groton Investment Policy Statements (IPS)
- General Fund & Long-Term Funds IPS
- Trust Funds IPS
- OPEB Trust IPS

Page 22 of 23




SELECT BOARD POLICY

Bond Proceeds

Investment of Bond proceeds is governed by the same restrictions as general funds, with the
additional caveat of arbitrage regulations.

Trust Funds

Trust Funds may be co-mingled and invested in any instruments allowed by Legal List issued by
the Banking Commissioner. Each trust fund must be accounted for separately.

Effective October 3, 2020, the Town approved a petition of Special Legislation to the Senate
and House of Representatives of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts to enact special
legislation authorizing the Treasurer of the Town of Groton to invest the Town's Trust funds
notwithstanding section 54 of chapter 44 of the General Laws or any other general or specific
law to the contrary with the Massachusetts Prudent Investor Act, codified in Chapter 203C of the
General Laws. With respect to the Town of Groton, the Massachusetts Prudent Investor Act
shall take effect upon its passage and will supersede any previous Trust Funds investment
parameters (i.e., Legal List).

Stabilization Funds

The Stabilization Fund shall not exceed ten percent of the equalized valuation of the Town, and
any interest shall be added to and become a part of the fund.

POLICY ENDORSEMENT:
Chairman, Select Board Town Manager
Town Treasurer Town Accountant

Chairman, Finance Commitiee

Page 23 of 23




TOWN OF GROTON
GENERAL FUNDS & LONG-TERM FUNDS
INVESTMENT POLICY STATEMENT

The primary purpose of this Investment Policy Statement (IPS} is to provide a clear understanding regarding
the Town of Groton {the “Town”) Long Term Funds and General Fund objectives, goals, risk tolerance, aud
investment guidelines established for the investment of town funds.

I. The Investment of General Funds, Special Revenue Funds, Enterprise Funds, and Capital Projects Funds

A. Scope

This section of the 1PS applies only to short term operating funds such as general funds, special revenue
funds, enterprise funds, bond proceeds and capital project funds. A separatc Contributory Retirement Board, either
loca! or county, is responsible for the investment of the pension funds.

B. Investment Insiruments

Note: Public investments in Massachusetts are not protected through provisions in State law.
The Treasurer may invest in the following instruments:

» Massachusetts State pooled fund: Unlimited amounts (Pool is liquid) The Massachusetts Municipal
Depository Trust (MMDT), an investment pool for state, local, county and other independent governmental
authorities, is under the auspices of the State Treasurer. It invests in Bankers Acceptances, Commercial
Paper of high quality, Bank Certificates of Deposit, Repurchase agreements (Repos), and U. S. Treasury
Obligations. It has Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (F.D.L.C.) pass-throngh insurance on the CD's up
to the standard limits and takes delivery on the Repos and Treaswies. Under Government Accounting
Standards Board Regulation (GASB III), it is not considered an uncollateralized product.

e U, S. Treasuries that will be held to maturity: Unlimited amounts (Up to one-year maturity from date of
purchase)

s U.S. Agency obligations that will be held to maturity. Unlimited amounts {(Up to one-year maturity from
date of purchase)

o Bank accounts ot Certificates of Deposit (“CDs”) (Up to three years’ maturities from the date of purchase)
which are fully collateralized through a third-party agreement: Unlimited Amounts

e Bank accounts and CDs (Up to three years’ maturities from the date of purchase) insured by F.D.I.C. up to
the coverage limit. All bank accounts and CDs in one institution are considered in the aggregate for the
insurance coverage limit. In some cases, Banking Institutions carry additional insurance, Depository
Insurance Fund (D.1F.): Contact banking representative for amounts of coverage.

e Unsecured bank deposits of any kind such as other checking, savings, money market, or Certificates of
Deposit accounts at Banks that do not fit the above categories. These investments are subject to the following
limitations: No mote than 5% of an institution's assets and no more than 25% of a municipality's cash may
be comprised of unsecured bank deposits, This percentage may be inereased for not more than 30 days during
times of heavy collection or in anticipation of large payments that will be made by the town in the near future.
For example, thése payments may be for such items as debt service payment or regional school assessments.
Their credit worthiness will be tracked by Veribane, or other bank credit worthiness reporting systems. They




will be diversified as much as possible. CDs will be purchased for no more than three years and will be
reviewed frequently. '

e Money Market Mutual Funds that are registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission that have
received the highest possible rating from at least one nationally recognized statistical rating organization and
as otherwise referenced in the Massachusetts General Law Chapter 44 Section 55.

C. Diversification

Diversification should be interpreted in two ways: in terms of maturity as well as instrument type and issuer.
The diversification concept should include prohibition against over concentration of maturities, as well as
concentration in a specific institution. Except for U.S. Treasury obligations or investments fully collateralized by
U.S. Treasuries ot agencies, and State pools (MMDT), no more than 25% of the Town’s investments shall be invested

in a single financial institution.

D. Authorization

The Treasurer has authority to invest town funds, subject to the statutes of the Commonwealth Massachusetis
General Law Chapter 44 Section 55,55A, & 55B. - i

E. Restrictions

Chapter 44, Section 55 set forth several restrictions that the Treasurer must be aware of when making
investment selections.

o A Treasurer shall not at any one time have on deposit in a bank or trust company an amount exceeding 60%
of the capital and surplus of such bank or trust comparny, or banking company, unless satisfactory security is
given to it by such bank or trust company, or banking company for such excess.

¢ The treasurer shall not make a deposit in any banl, trust company or banking company with which he is, or
for any time during the three years immediately preceding the date of any such deposit was, associated as an
officer or employee. _

o  All securities shall have a maturity from date of purchase of one year or less, with the exception of bank
certificates of deposits that have a three-year limit from the date of purchase.

e Purchases under an agreement with a trust company, national bank or Banking Company to repurchase at not
less than original purchase price of said securities on a fixed date shall not exceed ninety days.

E. Légal References
Massachusetts General Law Chapter 44, Section 55

Massachusetts General Law Chapter 44, Section 55A
Massachusetts General Law Chapter 44; Section 55B




I, The Investment of Long-Term Funds

A. Scope

This section of the IPS applies only to funds that are designated as long term, i.e.,-trust funds, stabilization
funds, cemetery perpetual care, Town preservation act and other funds the town may have set aside for long term use.

All accounts will be maintained separately recciving their proportionate interest and any realized and
unrealized gains or losses. The account may be established as a pooled investment portfolio unless otherwise stated.
Any additional accounts will be maintained in this same manner.

B. Aauthority

Massachusetts General Law Chapter 44, section 54 pertains to the investment of Trust Funds, Chapter 40
Section 5B pertains to the investment of Stabilization Funds and, Chapter 44B section 7 pertains to the investinents
of Town Preservation Funds. All trust funds shall fall under the control of the town’s Treasurer unless otherwise

provided or directed by the donor.

If the trust fund results from a gift, grant or bequest from a private donor, and the private donor specifies how
the trust shall be invested; the trust fund shall be invested in accordance with the terms of the gift, grant or bequest.
If there is a conflict between such donor ferms and this Section II, the donor terms shall govern, subject to the general
principles of prudence set forth in the Policy.

C. Investment Instruments

M.G.L. Chapter 44 section 54 states that money should be deposited into savings bank, trust companies
incorporated under the laws of the Commonwealth, banking companies incorporated under the Jaws of the
Commonwealth which are members of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, or national banks, or invested in
participation units in a combined investment fund under section thirty-eight A of chapter twenty-nine, or in a paid—
up shares and accounts of and in co-operative banks, or in shares of savings and loan associations or in share or
savings deposits of federal savings and loan associations doing business in the commonwealth. '

Additionally, the Town may invest such funds in securities, other than mortgages or collateral foans, which
are legal for the investment of funds of savings banks under the laws of the commonwealth; provided, that not more
than fifteen percent (15%) of any such trust funds shall be invested in bank stocks and insurance company stocks,
not shall more than one and one-half percent (1 %%) of such funds be invested in the stock of any one bank or

insurance company,
The Treasurer may invest it the following instruments:

e U.S.Treasuries that maybe sold prior to maturity: Unlimited amounts (With no Jimit to the length of maturity

from date of purchase)
e (.S. Agency obligations that maybe sold prior to maturity. Unlimited amounts (With no limit to the length
of maturity from date of purchase) .




e Bank accounts or Certificates of Deposit (“CDs”) Unlimited amounts (With no limit to the length of maturity
from date of purchase), which is fully collateralized through a third-party agreement:

¢ Bank accounts and CDs (With no limit to the length of maturity from date of purchase) fully insured by
ED.LC, and in some cases also Depository Insurance Fund of Massachusetts (D.LF.): All bank accounts
and CDs in one institution are considered in the aggregate to receive the insurance coverage [imit.

o Unsecured bank deposits of any kind such as other checking, savings, money market, or Certificates of
Deposit accounts at Banlks that do not fit the above categoties. These investments are subject to the following
{imitations: These investments will be limited to no more than 5% of an institution's assets and no more than

© 95% of a municipality's cash. This percentage may be inciease for not more than 30 days during times of
heavy collection o in anticipation of large payments that will be made by the Town in the near future. These
payments maybe for such items as debt service payment or regional school assessments. Their credit
worthiness will be tracked by Veribane, or other bank credit worthiness reporting systems. They will be
diversified as much as possible. CDs will be purchased with no limit to the length of maturity from the date
of purchase and will be reviewed frequently.

o Common and preferred stock that ate listed in the List of Legal Investiments.

« Investment Funds that are listed in the List of Legal Investments.

o  All other items not separately identified here that are listed in the List of Legal Investments.

D. Standards of Care

The standard of prudence to be used by the Treasurer shall be the “Prndent Person™ standard and shall be
applied in the context of managing an overall portfolio. The Treasurer acting in accordance with written procedures
and this IPS, and exercising reasonable due diligence, shall be relieved of personal responsibility for an individual
security’s credit risk or market price changes, provided the purchases and sale of securities is carried out in accordance
with the terms of this IPS and the associated Massachusetts General Laws.

Tavestments shall be made with judgment and care, under circumstances then prevailing, which persons of
prudence, discretion, and intelligence exercise in the management of their own affairs; not for speculation, but for
investment considering the probable safety of their capital as well as the probable income fo be devived.

{n addition, this section would also apply to M.G.L. Chapter 44 Section 55A which refers to the liability of
the Treasurer Tor losses due to bankruptoy. ,

E. Diversification

. Diversification should be interpreted in two ways: in terms of maturity as well as instrament type and issuer,
The diversification concept should include prohibition against over concentration of maturities, as well as
concentration in a specific institution, except for U.S. Treasury obligations or investments fully collateralized by U.S.

Treasuries or agencies.

F. Legal References

Massachusetts General Law Chapter 40, Section 5B
Massachusetts General Law Chapter 44, Section 54
Massachusetts General Law Chapter 44, Section 55A
Massachusetts General Law Chapler 44, Section 55B
Massachusetts General Law Chapter 44B, Section 7




Trust Funds may be co-mingled and invested in any instruments allowed by the Commonwealth of
Massachusetts list of Legal Investments Legal issued by the Banking Commissioner each July. Each trust fund must
be accounted for separately. Chapter 44 Section 54 sets forth that Treasurers may invest in instruments that are legal
for savings banks. This list of nvestments is included in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts List of Legal

Investments, Chapter 167 Section 15A.

III, General Provisions

A. Objective

Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 44, section 55B requires the Town’s Treasurer to invest alf public
funds except those required to be kept uninvested for purposes of immediate distribution.

This section also requires that invested funds are to be placed at the highest possible rate of interest reasonably
available, considering the acceptable levels of safety, liquidity and yield. Therefore, these guidelines are intended to
further the objective of securing the highest reasonable return available that is consistent with safety of principal
while meeting the daily cash requirements for the operation of the town's business.

e Safefy of principal is the forcmost objective of the investment program. Investments shall be undertaken in
a manner that seeks to preserve capital through the mitigation of credit risk and interest rate risk, These risks
shall be mitigated by the diversification and prudent selection of investment instruments, and choice of
depository. Credit risk is the risk of loss due to the failure of the security issuer or backer. Interest rate risk
is the risk that the market value of the security will fall due to changes in general interest rates,

¢ Ligunidity is the next most important objective. The overall investment portfolio shall remain sufficiently
liqnid to meet all operating requirements that may be reasonably anticipated. Since all possible cash
demands cannot be anticipated, the treasurer shall attempt to carry out investment activities in a manner that
provides for meeting unusual or unexpected cash demands without requiring the liguidation of investments
that could result in forfeiture of accrued interest earnings, and loss of principal in some cases.

s Yield is the third, and last, objective. Investments shall be undertaken to achieve a fair market average rate
of return, taking into account safety and liquidity constraints as well as all legal requirements,

B. Risk Tolerance
e Credit Risk
«Credit risk” is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations.
The Town will manage credit risk several ways. There will be no limit to the amount of United States
Treasury and United States Government Agency obligations. In regard to other investments, the Town will only
purchase investment grade securities with a high concentration in secutities rated A or better. The Town may invest

in the Massachusetts Municipal Depository Trust (MMDT) with no limit to the amount of funds placed in the fund.
The Town may place funds in banking institutions as stated in Section C of this 1PS.




e Custodial Risk

The “custodial credit risl®” for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial
institution, a municipality will not be able to recover deposiis or will not be able to recover collateral securities that
are in the possession of an outside party. The custodial credit visk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the
failure of the counierparty to a transaction, a municipality will not be able to recover the value of investment or
collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party.

The Town will review the financial institution’s financial statements and the background of the Advisor. The
intent of this qualification is to limit the Town’s exposure {0 only those institutions with a proven financjal strength,
Capital adequacy of the firm, and overall affirmative reputation in the municipal industry. Fusther, all securities not
held directly by the Town, will be held in the Town’s name and tax identification number by a third-party custodian
approved by the Treasurer and evidenced by safekeeping receipts showing individual CUSIP numbers for each

security.
e« (oncentration of Credit Risk

“Concentration of credit risk” is the risk of loss attributed to the ma nitude of a government’s investment in
_ _ & g
a single issuer.

The Town will minimize concentration of eredit risk by diversifying the investment portfolio so that the
itnpact of potential losses from any one type of security or issuer will be minimized.

e Interest Rate Risk

S[nterest rate risk” is the risk that changes in intetest rates will adversely affect the Tair value of an investment,
The Town will manage interest rate risk by managing duration in the account.

o Foreign Currency Risk

“Poreign currency risk” is the risk that changes in foreign monetary exchange rates will adversely affect the
fair value of an investment ot a deposit.

The Town will limit investment in any instrument exposed to foreign currency risk.

C. Ethics

The Treasurer (and Assistant Treasurer) shall refrain from any personal activity that may conflict with the
- proper execution of the investment program or which could impair or appear to impair ability to make impartial
investment decisions. Said individuals shall disclose to the Finance Director any mnaterial financial interest in
financial institutions that do business with the Town, They shall also disclose any laxge personal financial investment
positions or loans that could be related to the performance of the Town’s investments.




D. Relationship with Financial Institutions

Financial institutions should be selected first and foremost about their financial soundness and stability, The
Town may subscribe to the Veribanc Rating Service to evaluate the banking institutions with which it chooses to
establish relationships. Brokers should be recognized, reputable dealers and members of the Financial Industry
Regulatory Authority (FINRA).

In instances where the Town does not purchase the Veribanc Rating Service, the Treasurer should request
the banking institution’s Veribanc rating from all the banking institutions that ave working with the Town on a

quarterly basis.

When using the Veribanc Rating Service the Treasurer may invest in such banks that show a green rating in
a quarter. If a yating is yellow the Treasurer should contact the appropriate banking institution and request in writing
an explanation of the change in rating and the expected time table for it to be changed to green. If fora second quarter
such rating is not green, the Treasurer should consider removing all funds that are not collateralized, or carries some
form of depositor’s insurance. If a rating moves to red, all money should be immediately collateralized or covered by

- some form of depositor’s insurance or be removed from the banking institution.

The Treasurer may require any brokerage houses and broker/dealers wishing to do business with the
. municipality to supply the following information to the Treasurer on an annual basis: o

e Annual Financial statements

o Ifacting as a Registered Investment Advisor, copy of their most recent Form ADV Part If veport

s Eirors & Omissions insurance amounting to, at a minimum, the total fair market value of the Trust Fund
Portfolio

e A stafement that the Advisor has read the municipality's IPS and will comply with it on an annual basis

o  Annual review all advisors through www.finra.org; Broker Check

E. Reporting Requirements

On a semj-annual basis, a report containing the following information will be prepared by the Treasurer and
distributed to the Town Accountant, as appropriate. The semi-annual report will include the following information,
as a minimum requirement: '

o A listing of the individual accounts and individual securities held at the end of the reporting period.

o A listing of the short-term investment portfolio by security type and maturity to ensure compliance with the
diversification and maturity guidelines established in the "Diversification” section of this IPS.

e A summary of the income earned monthly and year-to-date basis shall be reported. .

o The Treasurer shall include in the report a brief statement of general market and economic conditions and
other factors that may affect the town’s cash position,

» The report should demonstrate the degree of compliance with the tenets set forth in the IPS.




I #ﬁ sy /ﬂ\]/{ /(Oppf }\_, Treasurer of the Town of Groton have reviewed this IPS and will manage the

Thwn’s funds under my control in accordance with this IPS,

ﬁ%)&l{ﬂ}\m M,f”/ ]

Treasurer’s Signature

y]//ﬁumfm h MOH@/

Treasurei’s Printed Name

/21 /9022

Date /




TOWN OF GROTON
OPEB TRUST
INVESTMENT POLICY STATEMENT

The primary purpose of this Investment Policy Statement (the “IPS”) is to provide a clear understanding
regarding the Town of Groton®s (the “Town””) OPEB Trust’s {the “Trust”) investment objectives, performance goals,

and risk tolerance.

A. Scope

This IPS applies to all funds that are separately designated as long-term OPEB funds for the Town or any of
its separately identified enterprises. Any additional contributions to the Trust will be maintained in the same mannetr.

B. Authority

Massachusetts General Law Chapter 32B, Section 20 allows a city, town, district, county or municipal
lighting plant to set up a special trust fund, the Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) Liability Trust Fund. The
governmental unit’s treasurer is the custodian of the fund or in the case of a light plant, an officer designated by the
board. Investment of fund monies by the custodian must be consistent with the prudent person standard set forth in
Massachusetts General Law Chapter 203C for private trust funds. Interest earned on the investment of fund monies

belongs to the fund.

C. Diversification

The following asset classes can be included in the Trust in order to construct a diversified investment portfolio
that is both prudent and appropriate given the Town’s actuarial assumed discount rate, target rate of return, investment
objective, and risk tolerance. The investment parameters and asset allocation definitions that will govern the
Investment Manager of the diversified portfolio are included in the addendums to this IPS.

Kquities

The primary objective of the Trust’s equity allocation is to provide long—term total retuins that are, at a
minimum, consistent with appropriate broad market indexes through full market cycles.

The Investment Manager of the diversified portfolio can purchase and manage the equity allocation using
individual equities, such as domestic common stocks, preferred stocks, and/or American-Depository Receipts

(ADRs).

The Investment Manager can also utilize other investments such as, mutual funds, exchange traded funds,
closed-end funds, ete. Total equity exposure is able to include, both domestic and international equities, both
developed and emerging countries and geographic regions, as well as large-, mid-, and small-market capitalization
weighted compaunies, Direct holdings of common stock, preferred stock, and/or ADRs in any one company should
not exceed 5% of the market value of the invested portfolio.

Investing ditectly in real estate, private placements, letter stock, or initial public offerings is strictly
prohibited. The Investment Manager of the diversified portfolio shali not engage directly in margin transactions, short
sales, ot any other leveraged or inverse investment vehicles. Mutual funds, exchange-traded funds, and closed-end

Page 1 of 6




funds, however, may engage in margin, leverage, and/or short sales. Investing directly in unit-investment trusts
(UITs) and business development companies (BDCs) are strictly prohibited.

Fixed Income

The primary objectives of the Trust’s fixed income allocation are to preserve capital and generate a
reasonable level of cash flow. The secondary objective is to provide price returns that exhibit lower correlation to the
broad global equity markets in order to reduce the overall risk of the portfolio.

The Investment Manager of the diversified portfolio can purchase and manage the fixed income allocation
using individual bonds that are United States Dollar denominated only. Issuer selection can include domestic
corporate bonds and any obligations of the United States Government andfor its agencies.

The lnvestment Manager can also utilize other investment vehicles such as, mutual! funds, exchange traded
funds, closed-end funds, etc. Total fixed income exposure is able to include, both domestic and international bonds,
both developed and emerging countries and geographic regions. Direct holdings of individual corporate bonds in any
one company should not exceed 5% of the market value of the invested portfolio; however, this is not applicable to
the United States Government and/or its agencies. Lower-quality investments may only be held through diversified
vehicles, such as mutual funds or exchange-traded funds.

Investing directly in real estate, mortgages, coliateral or non-collateral loans, private placements, fixed
income or interest rate futures, or any other specialized fixed income ventures is strictly prohibited. Investing directly
in unit-investment trusts (UITs) and business development companies (BDCs) are strictly prohibited.

Alternative Investments

The primary objective of the Trust’s alternative allocation is to provide long-term capital appreciation that is
less correlated to broad global equity and fixed income indexes.

The Investment Manager of the diversified portfolio can only purchase those strategics that are deemed to be
alternative through daily-liquid diversified investment vehicles such as, mutual funds, exchange-traded funds, closed-
end funds, etc. The only exceptions to the daily liquidity rule are private equity and real estate exposures and
investment strategies. Private equity vehicles may also hold private debt as part of a diversified strategy.

Investing directly in unit-investment trusts (UITs) and business development companies (BDCs) are strictly
prohibited.
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash will be maintained to provide periodic cash distributions, when necessary. Cash will not normally be
held as a strategic investment asset, although the Investment Manager may seek to allow cash to build to the maximum
level in times of market uncertainty.

Page2 of 6




D. Specific Risks
Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations.

The Town will manage credit risk several ways. There will be no limit to the amount of United States
Treasury and United States Government Agency obligations.

In regard to fixed-income investments, the Town will only purchase investment grade securities. Lower-

quality invesiments may only be held through diversified vehicles, such as mutual funds or exchange-traded funds.
Investments in fixed incomme securitics will be made primarily for income and capital presetvation.

Custodial Risk

The custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial
institution, a government will not be able to recover deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that
arc in the possession of an outside party. The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the
failure of the counterpatty to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of investment or
collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party.

The Town will review the financial institution’s financial statements and the background of the sales
representative, The intent of this qualification is to linit the Town’s exposure to only those institutions with a proven
financial strength, Capital adequacy of the firm, and overall affirmative reputation in the municipal industry.

Further, all securitics not held directly by the Town, will be held in the Town’s name and tax identification
number by a third-party custodian approved by the Treasurer and evidenced by safekeeping receipts showing
individual CUSIP numbers for each security.

Concentration of Credif Risk

Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a government’s investment in a
single issuer.

The Town will minimize Concentration of Credit Risk by diversifying the investment portfolio so that the
impact of potential losses from any one type of security or issuer will be minimized. As stated above, securities of a
single corporate issuer (with the exception of the United States Government and its Agencies) will not exceed 5% of
the portfolio value.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment.

The Town will manage interest rate risk by managing duration, as a measure of interest rate sensitivity, in
the Trust.

Page 3 of 6




Foreion Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that changes in foreign monetary exchange rates will adversely affect the
fair value of an investment or a deposit.

The Town will, as much as feasible, mitigate foreign currency risk.

E. Standards of Care

The standard of prudence to be used by the Treasurer shall be the “Prudent Person” standard and shall be
applied in the context of managing an overall portfolio, The Treasurer acting in accordance with written procedures
and this IPS, and exercising reasonable due diligence, shall be relieved of personal responsibility for an individual
security’s credit risk or market price changes, provided the purchases and sale of securities is carried out in accordance
with the terms of this IPS.

Tnvestments shall be made with judgment and care, under circumstances then prevailing, which persons of
prudence, discretion, and intelligence exercise in the management of their own affairs; not for speculation, but for
investment considering the probable safety of their capital as well as the probable income to be derived.

In addition, this section would also apply to M.G.L. Chapter 44 Section 55A which refers to the liability of
the Treasurer for losses due to banlaruptey,

¥. Ethics

The Treasurer and Assistant Treasurer shall refrain from any personal activity that may conflict with the
proper execution of the investment program or which could impair or appear to impair ability to make impartial
investment decisions. The Treasurer shall disclose to the Town Manager any matetial financial interest in financial
institutions that do business with the Town. They shall also disclose any large personal financial investment positions
or loans that could be related to the performance of the Town's investmenis.

G. Relationship with Financial Institutions

Financial institutions should be selected first and foremost with regard fo their financial soundness and
stability. Brokers should be recognized, reputable dealers. All cash and securities shall be held in either a bank that
is allowable for the deposit of public funds, provided funds on deposit are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation (FDIC), or in an Investment Brokerage Account that is insured by the Securities Investor Protection
Corporation (SIPC). If a banking institution is selected as manager, the Town will subscribe to Veribanc®, a
recognized bank rating service,

The Treasurer may require any brokerage houses and broker/dealers, wishing to do business with the Town,
to supply the following information to the Treasurer:

+ Annual financial statements
o Ifacting as a Registered Investment Adviser, Form ADV Part II report
o Errors & Omissions insurance amounting to, at a minimum, the total fair market value of the Trust Funds

Portfolio.
¢ A statement that the Advisor has read the Town’s IPS and will comply with it on an annual basis

Page 4 of 6




o  Annual review all advisors through www.finra.org: Broker Check

H. Reporting Requirements

On a Semi-Annual basis, a report containing the following information will be prepared by the Treasurer and
distributed to the Town Manager, as appropriate. The semi-annual report will include the following information, as
a minimum requirement;

e A listing of the individual accounts and individual securities held at the end of the reporting period.

o A listing of the short-term investment portfolio by security type and maturity to ensure compliance with the
diversification and maturity guidelines established in the "Diversification" section of this II'S.
A summary of the income earned on a monthly basis and year-to-date basis shall be reported,

o The Treasurer shall include in the report a brief statement of general market and economic conditions and
other factors that may affect the Town's cash position.

s The report should demonstrate the degree of compliance with the tenets set forth in the IPS.

1. Performance Measurement and Evaluation

o The individual and custom benchmarks that will be monitored for performance reporting and analysis of the
Trust’s pottfolio are stated and described in the addendums to this IPS.

o It is oxpected that the respective asset classes of the Trust’s diversified portfolio will outperform their
respective benchmarks, net of fees and expenses, on a long term (market cycle) basis.

K. Supervision

o The Treasurer will meet with the investment manager(s) as frequently as semi-annually to monitor the
performance of the funds and the investment managex(s) compliance with these guidelines. The Treasurer
will receive and review portfolio management reports semi-annually.

e The Treasurer will review this Investment Policy Statement at least once a year to ensure that it remains
appropriate and complete.

¢ The Treasurer has the option to review the management of funds to consider going out to bid periodically.

L. Legal References

¢ Massachusetts General Law Chapter 32B, Section 20
s Massachusetts General Law Chapter 203C, Section I through 11

Page 5 of 6



I j//a“(f @/p\ M//ﬁ&/{; Treasurer of the Town of Groton have reviewed this IPS and will manage the

Town’s OPEB Trust under my control in accordance with this IPS and any attached Addendums.

#ﬁuu ;LQ WQQ&A

Treasurer’s Signature

Hannah Malley”

Treasurer’s Printed Name

|[21] 9002

Ddte

Page 6 of 6



TOWN OF GROTON
TRUST FUNDS
INVESTMENT POLICY STATEMENT

The primary purpose of this Investment Policy Statement (the “IPS”) is to provide a clear understanding
regarding the Town of Groton’s (the “Town”) Trust Fund’s myvestment objectives, performance goals, risk tolerance,
and investment guidelines established for the long-term Prudent Investor funds.

A. Scope

This IPS applies to all funds that are separately designated as Trust Funds. These funds can be invested as a
pooled investment portfolio unless otherwise stated. Any additional contributions of these types of funds will also be
maindained in the same manner,

B. Authority

The funds shall be invested pursuant to Massachusetts General Laws 203C (The Massachusetts Prodent
Investor Act) unless otherwise stipulated.

C. Diversification

The following asset classes can be included in the Trust Funds in order to construct a diversified investment
portfolio that is both prudent and appropriate given the Trust Fund’s target rate of return, investment objective, and
risk tolerance. The investment parameters and asset allocation definitions that will govern the Investment Manager
of the diversified portfolio ave included in the addendums to this IPS.

Equities

The primary objective of the Trust Funds equity allocation is to provide long—term tofal retums that are, ata
minimum, consistent with appropriate broad marlet indexes through full market oycles.

The Investment Manager of the diversified portfolio can purchase and manage the equity allocation using
individual equities, such as domestic common stocks, preferred stocks, and/ot American-Depository Receipts

(ADRs).

The Investment Manager can also utilize other investment vehicles such as, mutual funds, exchange traded
funds, closed-end funds, etc. Total equity exposure is able to include, both domestic and international equities, both
developed and emerging countries and geographic regions, as well as large-, mid-, and small-market capitalization
weighted companies. Direct holdings of common stock, preferred stock, and/or ADRs in any one company should
not exceed 5% of the market value of the invested portfolio.

Tnvesting directly in real estate, private placements, letter stock, or initial public offerings is strictly
prohibited. The Investment Manager of the diversitied portfolio shall not engage directly in margin transactions, short
sales, or any other leveraged ot inverse investment vehicles. Mutual funds, exchange-traded funds, and closed-end
funds, however, may engage in margin, leverage, and/or short sales, Investing directly in unit-investment trusts
(UITs) and business development companies (BDCs) are strictly prohibited.

Page 1l of 6




Fixed Income

The primary objectives of the Trust Funds fixed income allocation are to preserve capital and generate a
reasonable level of cash flow. The secondary objective is to provide price returms that exhibit lower correlation to the
broad global equity markets in order to reduce the overall risk of the portfolio.

The Investment Manager of the diversified portfolio can purchase and manage the fixed income allocation
using individual bonds that are United States Dollar denominated only. Issuer selection can imclude domestic
corporate bonds and any obligations of the United States Govermment and/or its agencies.

The Investment Manager can also ufilize other investment vehicles such as, mutual funds, exchange traded
funds, closed-end funds, etc. Total fixed income exposure is able to include, both domestic and international bonds,
both developed and emerging countries and geographic regions. Direct holdings of individual corporate bonds in any
one company should not exceed 5% of the market value of the invested portfolio; however, this is not applicable to
the United States Government and/or its agencies. Lower-qualify investments may only be held through diversified
vehicles, such as mutual funds or exchange-traded funds.

Investing directly in real estate, mortgages, collateral or non-collateral loans, private placements, fixed

income or inferest rate futures, or any other specialized fixed income ventures is strictly prohibited. Investing directly
in unit-investment trusts (UITs) and business development companies (BDCs) are strictly prohibited.

Alternative Investments

The primary objective of the Trust Fund’s alternative allocation is to provide long-term capital appreciation
that is less correlated to broad global equity and fixed income indexes.

The Investment Manager of the diversified portfolio can only purchase those strategies that are deemed to be
alternative through daily-liquid diversified investment vehicles such as, mutual funds, exchange-traded funds, closed-
end funds, etc. The only exception to the daily liquidity rule is private equity exposure and investiment strategies.
Private equity vehicles may also hold private debt as part of a diversified strategy.

Investing directly in unit-investment trasts (UITs) and business development companies (BDCs) are strictly
prohibited. ' ‘ S -

Cuasht and Cash Equivalents

Cash will be maintained to provide periodic cash distributions, if and when necessary. Cash will not
normally be held as a strategic investment asset, although the Investment Manager may seek to allow cash to build

to the maximum level in times of market uncertainty.

Page 2 of 6




D.- Specific Risks
Credir Risk
Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations.

The Investment Manager will manage credit risk several ways. There will be no limit to the amount of United
States Treasury and United States Government Agency obligations.

In regards to fixed-income investments, the Investinent Manager will only purchase mvestment grade
securities. Lower-quality investments may only be held through diversified vehicles, such as mutual funds or
exchange-traded funds. Investments in fixed income securities will be made primarily for income and capital

preservation.
Custodial Risk

The custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial
institution, a government will not be able to recover deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that

are in the possession of an outside party.

The Town will review the financial institution’s financial statements and the background of the sales
representative. The intent of this qualification is to limit the Town’s exposure to only those institutions with a proven
financial strength, Capital adequacy of the firm, and overall affirmative reputation.

Further, all securities not held directly by the Town, will be held in the Town of Groton’s name and tax
identification number by a third-party custodian approved by the Treasurer and evidenced by safekeeping receipts
showing individual CUSIP numbers for cach security.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss atirfbuted to the magnitude of a government’s investment ina
single issuet.

The Investment Manager will minimize Concentration of Credit Risk by diversifying the invesiment portfolio
so that the impact of potential losses from any one type of security or {ssuer will be minimized. As stated above,
securities of a single corporate issuer (with the exception of the United States Government and its Agencies) will not

exceed 5% of the portfolio value,

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment.

_ The Investment Manager will manage interest rate risk by managing duration, as.a measure of interest rate
sensitivity, in the funds.

Page 3 of 6




Foreion Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that changes in foreign monetary exchange rates will adversely affect the
fair value of an investment or a deposit.

The Investment Manager will, as much as feasible, mitigate foreign currency risk.

E. Standards of Care

The standard of prudence to be used by the Treasurer and/or other authorized person, shall be the “Prudent
Person” standard and shall be applied in the context of managing an overall portfolio. The Treasurer and/or other
authorized person, acting in accordance with written procedures and this IPS, and exercising reasonable due diligence,
shall be relieved of personal responsibility for an individual security’s credit risk or m arket price changes, provided
the purchases and sale of securities is caried out in accordance with the terms of this IPS.

Investments shall be made with judgment and care, under circumstances then prevailing, which persons of
prudence, discretion, and intelligence exercise in the management of their own affairs; not for speculation, but for
investment considering the probable safety of their capital as well as the probable income to be derived.

I, EBthics

The Treasurer and/or all other authorized persons shall refrain from any personal activity that may conflict
with the proper execution of the investment program or which could impair or appear to impair ability to make
impartial investment decisions. The Treasurer and/or all other authorized persons shall disclose to the Town any
material financial jnferest in financial institutions that do business with the Town. They shall also disclose any large
personal financial investment positions or loans that could be related to fhe performance of the Town's investments.

G. Relationship with Financial Institutions

" “Finsncial institutions should be selected first and foremost with regard to their financial soundness and
stability. Brokers should be recognized, reputable dealers. All cash and securities shall be held in either a bank that
is allowable for the deposit of public funds, provided funds on deposit are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation (FDIC), or in an Investment Brokerage Account that is insured by the Securities Investor Protection
Corporation (SIPC). If a banking institution is sclected as manager, the Town will subscribe to Veribanc®, a

recognized bank rating service.

The Treasurer and/or all other authorized persons may require any brokerage houses and broker/dealers,
wishing to do business with the Tawn, to supply the following information to the Treasurer and/or all other authorized

persons:

=  Anmual financial statements
If acting as a Registered Investment Adviser, Form ADV Part I report

o Errors & Omissions insurance amounting to, at a minimum, the total fair market value of the Trust Funds
Portfolio,

o A statement that the Advisor has read the Town’s IPS and will comply with it on an annual basis

o Annual review all advisors through www.finra.org: Broker Check

Page 4 of 6




H. Reporting Requirements

On a Semi-Annual basis, a report containing the following information will be prepared by the Treasurer

andfor other authorized persons and distributed to the Town, as appropriate. The Semi-Annual report will inchude
the following information, as a minimum requirement:

A listing of the individval accounts and individual securities held at the end of the reporting period.

A listing of the short-term investment portfolio by security type and matwrity to ensure compliance with the
diversification and maturity guidelines established in the "Diversification” section of this IPS.

A surmmnary of the income earned on a monthly basis and year-to-date basis shall be reported.

The Treasurer shall include in the report a brief statement of general market and econonic conditions and
other factors that may affect the Town's cash position. _

The report should demonstrate the degree of compliance with the tenets set forth in the IPS.

1. Performance Measurement and Evaluation

L]

@

The individual and custom benchmarks that will be monitored for performance reporting and analysis of the
fund’s portfolio are stated and described in the addendums to this IPS.

Tt is expected that the respective asset classes of the fund’s diversified portfolio will outperform their
respective benchmarks, net of fees and expenses, on a long tetm (market cycle) basis.

J. Supervision

The Treasurer will meet with the investment manager(s) as frequently as semi-annually to mouitor the
performance of the funds and the investment manager(s) compliance with fhese guidelines. The Treasurer
will recefve and review portfolio management reports semi-aunually.

The Treasurer will review this Investment Policy Statement at least once a year to ensure that it remains

appropriate and complete.
The Treasurer has the option to review the management of funds to consider going out to bid periodically-

K. Legal References

-]

Massachusetts General Law Chapter 203C, Section 1 through 11

Page 5 of 6




The below signed Treasurer and/or other authorized persons of the Town of Groton have reviewed this IPS and will
manage the Town’s Trust Funds under my control i -accordance with this IPS. :

Hrnat Welh_

Treasurer’s Si gnaiul e

/’/0/4/4&/4 Moller

Printed Name

D@/ ol [ 2032

Page 6 of 6



SELECT BOARD MEETING MINUTES
MONDAY, November 21, 2022
UN-APPROVED

SB Members Present: John F. Reilly, Chair; Rebecca H. Pine, Vice Chair; Matthew F. Pisani, Clerk; Alison S. Manugian,
Member; Peter S. Cunningham, Member

Also Present: Mark W. Haddad, Town Manager; Kara Cruikshank, Executive Assistant to the Town Manager; Tom QOrcutt,
Water Superintendent; Megan Foster, Principal Assessor; Hannah Moller, Treasurer/Tax Collector; Members of the Board
of Assessors

John Reilly called the meeting to order at 7:00 PM and reviewed the agenda.

ANNOUNCEMENTS
Mr. Haddad announced the Groton Woman'’s Club will be holding their 16" Annual Green'’s Sale on Saturday, December 3
2022 from 9-1pm at Williams Barn. The Snow date is Sunday, December 4, 2022.

The Town Hall and Transfer Station hours will be altered with the Thanksgiving Holiday.
The hours are as follows:

Town Hall will close at 2:00pm on Wednesday, November 23" and will be closed on Thursday and Friday.
The Transfer Station will close at 2:00pm on Wednesday, November 23" closed on Thursday, and will be open on Friday.

Mr. Cunningham said Senator Kennedy, Senator Eldridge, Representative Sena and Senator Cronin did a site walk at the
Nashua Rail Trail and observed the conditions.

Ms. Pine wished everyone a Happy Thanksgiving and said she is thankful for the way our Town Clerk and many election
workers handled the election.

PUBLIC COMMENTS
No public comments were made.

TOWN MANAGER’S REPORT
1. Consider Ratifying the Town Manager’s Appointment of Ndricim Baboci as a Truck Driver/Laborer for the Groton
DPW.

Ms. Pine made a motion to ratify the Appointment of Mr. Ndricim Baboci as a Truck Driver/Laborer to the DPW
subject to successfully passing his physical. Mr. Cunningham seconded the motion. The motion carried
unanimously.

2. Consider Ratifying the Town Manager's Appointment of Ms. Jennifer Rand to the Historic Districts Commission.
This Appointment would fill a vacancy caused by the resignation of Mr. George Wheatley.

Mr. Cunningham made a motion to ratify the Appointment of Ms. Jennifer Rand. Mr. Pisani seconded the motion.
The motion carried unanimously.

Page 1 of 4 November 21, 2022 Regular Session



3. Mr. Thomas Orcutt, Groton Water Superintendent, was in attendance to give an update on the PFAS issue at
GDRSD. There was a second meeting that was held with the representatives of the Department of Environmental
Protection, Town of Pepperell, Town of Dunstable, Groton Dunstable Regional School District, consulting engineers
and the Groton Water Department to determine how to address the PFAS situation at the Groton Dunstable
School District. Tighe and Bond, consulting engineers, came up with four scenarios. One scenario is two phases
along with annual operating costs.

Alternative 1: Provide PFAS Treatment On-Site. The estimated project budget is: $3 million.

Alternative 2: Groton Water System Connection. The estimated project budget is $8 million.

Alternative 3: Phase 1: Pepperell Water System Connection. The estimated project budget is $4 million.
Alternative 3, Phase 2:- Dunstable Water System Connection. The estimated project budget is $5.5 million.

Mr. Orcutt said there are a lot of permits that will be entailed and he anticipates a chlorinating station at any of
the solutions. The PFAS regulations will change down the road, therefore this decision is difficult and no solution
is inexpensive.

7:15 PM- Mr. Haddad asked the Select Board to pause this discussion to open the Tax Classification Hearing. He
read the Public Hearing notice.

Ms. Pine moved to open the Tax Classification hearing. Mr. Cunningham seconded the motion. The motion carried
unanimously.

Mr. Cunningham moved to extend the public hearing until after the PFAS discussion. Ms. Pine seconded the motion.
The motion carried unanimously.

PFAS discussion continuation.

Ms. Pine said the more municipalities that are involved, the more risks down the road they may see and will make
it tricky. There may be the possibility of needing us to go to three Town Meetings. Mr. Haddad said the main thing
to worry about and take care of right now is to take care of the high School. To run the pipes up Chicopee Row,
they would need to see if everyone can tie into the line. Mr. Cunningham asked if they are all eligible for funding?
Mr. Haddad said they are all eligible, it is just a matter of how much. DEP suggested deciding the sooner the
better. The new well is giving us a lot more capacity, Mr. Haddad said. Unless the board objects, Mr. Haddad
would like to explore the Groton scenario. Mr. Cunningham would like to hear from the Groton Commissioners as
well.

Tax Classification Hearing

The Tax Classification Hearing was held to determine the annual tax levy percentage for Fiscal Year 2023. Principal
Assessor Megan Foster and Board of Assessors Member Mr. Don Black and Mr. Garret Boles were in attendance to
assist with the determination.

Mr. Boles made a motion to call the Assessors to Order. Mr. Black seconded the motion. The motion carried
unanimously.

Ms. Pine moved to re-open the public hearing. Mr. Cunningham seconded the motion. The motion carried
unanimously.

Page 2 of 4 November 21, 2022 Regular Session



Ms. Foster presented a power point to the members of the public and to the Select Board. Ms. Foster said new
growth is defined by the Department of Revenue as a dollar increase in the annual levy limit that reflects additions
to the community. A few key points are, the tax rate is $15.64 per thousand dollars, the average single-family
home is $633,985, and the average tax bill is approximately $9,915.53. Currently there are no parcels in Groton,
classified as open space.

Classification Vote Summary
1. Vote for a single tax rate or consider a shift of the tax levy from the residential class to the Commercial,

Industrial and Personal Property Classes

Mr. Cunningham moved that the Board use the factor of 1 and vote a single tax rate in the Town of Groton at
a tax rate of $15.64. Ms. Pine seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.

2  Vote on whether to adopt a residential exemption

Ms. Manugian moved that they not adopt a residential exemption. Mr. Cunningham seconded the motion.
The motion carried unanimously.

3. Vote on whether to adopt a small commercial exemption

Ms. Pine moved that they not adopt a small commercial exemption. Mr. Pisani seconded the motion. The
motion carried unanimously.

The third quarter tax bills will be issued on January 1, 2023. Ms. Pine did say there are exemptions available. Ms.
Foster encourages residents to visit the Assessor’s Office with any questions regarding FY23 Assess Value.

Ms. Pine moved to close the public hearing. Mr. Cunningham seconded the motion. The vote carried unanimously.
4. Fiscal Year Budget Development Update-Mr. Haddad will set up a zoom link for those who can not attend the
budget hearings in person. They will be held on Monday, November 28t Tuesday, November 29" and

Wednesday, November 30™.

5. Update on the Select Board Meeting Schedule Through the End of the Year
Mr. Haddad updated the Board on their meeting schedule through the end of the year.

Monday, November 28, 2022 No Meeting
Monday, December 5, 2022 -Annual License Renewal
-Destination Groton Committee Update
Monday, December 12, 2022 -Sustainability Commission Report
Monday, December 19, 2022 -Finance team Update on New Growth, etc.
Monday, December 26, 2022 No Meeting (Christmas Holiday)
Monday, January 2, 2023 No Meeting (New Year Holiday)
Monday, January 9, 2023 -FY 2024 Town Manager’s Budget Presentation

Page 3 of 4 7 November 21, 2022 Regular Session



SELECT BOARD ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION

1.

Pursuant to Article 1, Section B(1) of the Agreement between the Town and the Fire Chief Steel McCurdy,
determine whether or not the Board intends to renew the agreement for an additional three years.

Mr. Pisani recused himself.

Mr. Cunningham made a motion to enter into contract negotiations into a new three-year agreement. Ms.
Manugian seconded the motion. The vote carried unanimous. The Board designated Mr. Cunningham to work
with Mr. Haddad on the negotiations.

Discussion- Determine process for the SB members to be assigned to specific tasks. Ms. Manugian was concerned
about how members get assigned to deal with certain subjects. She felt that it needed to be a Board discussion.
Examples included the issue of PFAS at the high school, state leadership and the sportsman club cleanup. Ms. Pine
stated that is good to know what everyone is doing and not duplicating. The Board discussed ensuring that all
matters are discussed by the Board.

Review/update SB Policy on Political Activity

Mr. Haddad sent a draft to the board from what town counsel came up with to update this policy. Separate Policies
for paid employees and elected officials would make sense. Ms. Pine said we just had an election and she wanted
to support someone, but did not want to violate the Policy. Board members are considered employees even though
they are not paid under the law. Distinguish between paid employees and elected official. You can endorse and
make contributions, Mr. Reilly said. The members decided to revisit and come back with two policies

Public Comments/Questions

OTHER BUSINESS

All Florence Roche bids came in under budget which is great news. The non- bid items all came in on budget.
Everyone is working hard. All the foundation work is done and the track is complete. At the Board’s request, Mr.
Haddad will forward the most recent drone photos to the board. Ms. Pine would like a few photos sent to the

paper.

MINUTES
Cunningham made a motion to approve the minutes of the regularly scheduled meeting on November 14, 2022, Ms. Pine

seconded the motion. The motion carried unanimously.

LIASON REPORTS

None.

The meeting was adjourned at 8:11 PM

Approved:

Matthew F. Pisani, Clerk respectfully submitted: Kara Cruikshank,
Executive Assistant to the Town Manager

Date Approved:

Page 4 of 4 ; November 21, 2022 Regular Session



